
                 
  Public Notice of Meeting 

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
                                               Tuesday, February 6, 2018 
                 Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 

           6:30 p.m. 
  

I. CALL TO ORDER-Harry Dailey-Chair  
 

II. ELEMENTARY STUDENTS OF THE MONTH 
 

III. GEOGRAPHY/SPELLING BEE WINNERS 
 

IV. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  This is the public’s opportunity to speak to items on the agenda. This is also the 
public’s opportunity to speak to any topic concerning the school district.  No complaints regarding specific staff 
members will be heard during a public meeting.  The District has established separate procedures for complaints 
against individual employees.   

  
VI. PRESENTATIONS 

i. Solar Panels-WLC-John Zavgren 
ii. Gettysburg-Marc Belanger 

iii. Washington D.C.-Marc Belanger-Request 
 

VII. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 
a. Reports  

i. Superintendent’s Report   
ii. Business Administrator’s Report  

iii. Principals’ Reports  
iv. Curriculum Coordinator’s Report 

 
VIII. 7:00PM JOINT BOARD & BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION 

a. FY 2018-2019 Budget/Warrants & Preparation for Public Hearing 
 

IX. CONSENT AGENDA 
a. Treasurer’s Report-December 2017 
 

X. 2018-2019 SCHOOL DISTRICT CALENDAR 
 

XI. ACTION ITEMS 
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 
b. Audit Acceptance 

 
XII. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

i. Budget Liaison 
 

XIII. RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES  
 

XIV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

XV. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (C)   

 Student Matter 

 
XVI. ADJOURNMENT  

 
 

INFORMATION:  Next School Board Meeting‐February 20, 6:30 PM at WLC‐Media Room 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, 

gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  



Gettysburg



Day One

● Visited monuments
● Enjoyed the gorgeous scenery of 

Gettysburg, PA



Day Two

● Battlefield tour
● Sunset and Pres. on 

Little Round Top to 
end day

● Ate pizza at hotel 
● Talked about 

Reconstruction



Day Three

● Went to Devil’s Den
● Visited Gettysburg 

Museum
● Walked Pickett’s Charge
● Visited the Lincoln 

Address Memorial



Conclusion

● Although it was a short trip, it was very 
informative

● Smaller groups create better learning 
environments for both the students and 
the teachers



Proposed trip to Washington DC 
Dates: April 19-23 2018  
The trip will be open to up to 8 students in grades 11 and 12 
 
 
Transportation: Similar to the Gettysburg Trip, I will use the WLC to transport students to and 
from the Nation’s Capital. 
 
Lodging: We will be staying in a DoubleTree Hotel similar to the trip to the DC last year. The 
Hotel will be chosen by the end of the month. The link below is to the hotel we stayed at last 
year.  
http://doubletree3.hilton.com/en/hotels/maryland/doubletree-by-hilton-hotel-largo-washington-
dc-BWILWDT/index.html  
 
Schedule:  For most students this will be the second or third trip to DC. The students want to go 
and do more than the standard “field trip”. To better fit that expectation, I want the students to 
choose what they want to do. I have spoken to multiple students about what they would like to 
do and they have suggested the following: 
 
Visit Senator Hassan’s Office- They want to see the the side of Washington that truly impacts 
them; not just the Capitol Visitors’ center.  
 
Watch a Supreme Court case- Through their Government Class, Electives and VHS classes 
students have learned about Landmark Cases that have shaped our Country. They want to be 
able to experience this in person. I took 8 student last year to watch a Case live and the 
students that went shared their experiences.  
 
Tour Mount Vernon- Students have done researchers on the Founding Fathers for years. They 
have researched Mount Vernon and want the chance to see it in person.  
 
 
While we are in DC we will utilize public transit.  
 
Cost to the district: None 
 
Cost to the Student: Students will be responsible for the cost of Lodging and gasoline for the 
trip. I am going to add $70 to the trip per person and use that for gasoline. We spent 
approximately $350 in gas for the Gettysburg Trip and this trip is only 100 miles further round 
trip. Student will be also responsible for food on the trip.  
 
 
 
 

Stipend Budget Transfer  



 
There was a stipend set aside for a  Chaperones on a High School Field Trip. The Budgeted 
amount was $2000 dollars split between four chaperones. This trip will only have one WLC 
Chaperone (Myself) and my wife who is also a Government teacher in Belmont.  I request that 
the remaining funds be used for the purpose of enhancing the trip for our students. This can be 
done multiple ways.  
 

1. Allow me to offset the price of food for the trip. The largest expense will be dinner each 
night while we are in DC. If WLC would assist with dinner it would cut the cost 
associated with our students.  

2. Pay for their transit. The DC Metro offers a 5-day pass that will allow us to ride the metro 
and city busses the entire time we are in the city for one price. Instead of having to 
constantly reload our metrocards to pay for the fare we would be able to simply board 
and go.  

3. Off Set price for lodging  
4. Use funds for a scholarship. There are multiple students that want to go, but the price of 

the trip creates a barrier for them.  



NAME____________________ 
 
CONTROL:_________________   <<<<<<< Choose a random number for yourself.  
 
APPLICATION DUE BY:2/09/2018 

 
1. Have you been to DC before? If So why do you want to go back? If You have not 

why do you want to go?  
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
       2. If you go to pick one place in DC to see where would it be and why?  
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 
        3. In your opinion why is it important for Americans to see the Nation’s Capital 
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 
        4. DC has many memorials and museums in your opinion, why is it important to remember 
the past? 
____________________________________________________________________________



____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________ 
5. If you could meet any of the Founding Fathers, who would you choose and why?  
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
February 6, 2018 

 
Our office has been gathering whatever information might be needed by either the budget committee 
or the school board as the final budget figures are created.  The SAU staff will work to have all 
materials ready for the public hearing that will be held on Thursday February 8 at 7PM at WLC. 
 
In the next accounting of student enrollment the board will notice that the senior class at WLC has 
increased to from 36 to 45 students.  This change is due to 9 students who were classified as juniors at 
the beginning of the school year have increased their earned credits to make them eligible to graduate 
in June.  As of January 30 this brings the student enrollment at WLC HS to be: 
 
 Grade 12 45 students 
 Grade 11 29 students 
 Grade 10 33 students 
 Grade 9  48 students 
 
There has been a great deal of conversation among Superintendents in regard to the state legislature’s 
expansion in the ability to carry firearms.   The new “carry” statutes do not restrict the carrying of 
firearms on school property.  The Gun-Free School Zones Act of 1995 restricts the carrying of 
weapons within 1,000 feet of a school.  It also requires an automatic one year suspension from school 
of any student found to be in possession of a fire arm.  Local police departments do not have the 
authority to enforce federal law according to the Attorney General of New Hampshire.  There are 
several school districts in New Hampshire that have district policies that prohibit the carrying of 
firearms on school property.  In an article appearing in the Valley News, a regional newspaper in the 
Lebanon region of the state, the New Hampshire Attorney General’s office has determined that the 
policies of school districts do not supersede the state law. So where does that leave us?  Our district 
policy, JICI, indicates that we will inform law enforcement if we are made aware that anyone is 
carrying a firearm on school property.  We will continue to inform the police with the understanding 
that they have no ability to confront the individual in question.  The statute still exists and is 
enforceable that students are not allowed to carry weapons and we will follow policy JICI as written in 
regard to students.  There is no need to change the wording of the district policy at this time. 
 
I will be teaching my next course at Southern New Hampshire University on Thursday nights in 
Concord, the class is Process and Communication Skills. 
 
February 2nd is a teacher workshop day. 
 
On February 5th, I will be attending the NHSAA Legislative Update workshop in Concord. 
 
I will be attending the ASAA national conference on February 14-17. 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road 
Lyndeborough, NH  03082 

603-654-8088 

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 
  
  



 

 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BUSINESS OFFICE REPORT 

February 6, 2018 

 
 
Lise has completed the MD&A (Management Discussion and Analysis) report for insertion into the audit 
report.  She has also worked with the actuary to complete the required GASB45 – Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB) Report.  This pertains to the schedule of funding for eligible employees for 
retirement, primarily teachers who get the medical value being in the consortium.  It also discloses the 
proportionate share of the projected pension liability through the NH Retirement System. 
 
Our audit for 2016-17 is now complete. You should have a copy in your packet.  In the Independent 
Auditor’s Report, you will find that we received an ‘unmodified opinion’ on our financial statements.  
This means that we had a ‘clean’ audit. 
 
Lise attended the January NH Association of Business Officials (ASBO) meeting.  The agenda included 
presentations from Conway Office Solutions and Melanson Heath Accountants/Auditors.  Conway 
Solutions promoted their new software program called “eCopy”.  It takes an Adobe file and converts 
some of the document parts to MS Word so that you can fill in fields.  Melanson Heath did an overview 
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants organization (AICPA) and the Governmental 
Audit Quality Center (GAQC) which focuses on training for them.  The Drummond Woodsum Law firm 
gave a presentation on Procurement and Bidding Requirements.  They focused on procurement goals.  
We should solicit based on the following;  1)  Bids are based on price only, 2)  RFP – request for 
proposals are based on price and other considerations, and 3) RFQ – request for qualifications are based 
on specific job qualifications (ie.  Roofing, auditing). 
 
The Food Service Program at Florence Rideout Elementary School had their State Administrative Review.  
This review is done every three years.  This is an extensive review of the program which includes; Meal 
Patterns and Nutritional Quality, Resource/Revenue Management, and General Compliance (SOPs).  
Thank you, Bob, for all your hard work in putting these documents together. 
 
Our scheduled meeting for the Joint Loss Management Committee (JLMC) on January 22nd was 
canceled.  We are doing the administrative part of the meeting via email. There are no new staff claims.  
We are scheduled to do a detailed walkthrough of Florence Rideout Elementary on Tuesday, January 
30th.   Our next meeting is at WLC on April 19 at 3:00 p.m. 
 
Buddy and Lise attended the Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) workshop.  The agenda included an 
overview of what the plan should entail and what is required by the state statues.  We have our three 
school plans in draft form.  These plans are required to be submitted annually.  We are now looking to 
the town officials to review so that we can submit them accordingly.   

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

       192 Forest Road, 

  Lyndeborough, NH 03082   

                        

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 

 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 

  

  



WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 
MIDDLE SCHOOL / HIGH SCHOOL 

57 SCHOOL ROAD 
WILTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03086 

(603) 654-6123 
www.wlcwarriors.net 

 

 
The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, 
age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational 
programs, activities or employment practice.  
 

“WLC will strive to be a positive learning community that ensures each student has the opportunity to develop to his or her potential.”                

 
Brian Bagley, Principal 
Susan Ballou, Assistant Principal 

 
Amanda J. Kovaliv, School Counseling Coordinator 

Shannon O’Donnell, Middle School Counselor 
	
	
 

Principal Report 
February 6, 2018 

 
On Saturday January 20, three students (Abby van Ham, Lily Gendron, and Nora Marcinuk) from WLC 
participated in the annual Monadnock Valley Music Festival. This festival is a gathering of the brightest music 
students in the Monadnock Valley to perform in a large collaborative chorus (this year there were 77 members).  They 
spent 5 hours on a Thursday evening and 9 hours on a Saturday preparing 5 songs for a performance to a sold out crowd 
of more than 500 audience members at Monadnock Regional High School.  They were taught and conducted by a world 
renowned choral instructor.  It was a fantastic opportunity for our students and a tradition to continue at WLC.  There will 
be a recording delivered in a few weeks to anyone who is interested!   
 
WLC is pleased to announce that Jacob Yurcak is the Chapter winner for Good Citizens Award. On Friday, March 
9, 2018 Jacob will attend the New Hampshire State DAR luncheon to honor all the chapter Good Citizen Award 
winners.  It is held at the Holiday Inn in Concord.   
 
On January 31st and February 1st WLC invited parents, community members, the School Board, and the Budget 
Committee will assist in the analysis of evidence our faculty has collected as part of our re-accreditation process. This 
process seeks input from all stakeholders within the WLC community. The participants reviewed documents on WLC 
computers and completed short surveys at each station. Directions and details were provided. This is a continuation of our 
self-reflection that began with the survey staff, students and parents were invited to complete earlier this fall. As we 
collectively evaluate the evidence, we will understand what the evidence says about the school’s alignment to Principles 
of Effective Practice. We value the input from all members of the WLC community.  
 
Star 360 assessment for reading and math were administered to students in grades 6, 7, and 8 the week of January 
15th. Results were sent home January 24th. The information from the assessments helps us target the specific skills of 
students who need help. Students in all three grades are receiving intervention two times a week for both math and 
reading. 
 
The National Geographic Bee is an annual competition organized by the National Geographic Society, designed to 
inspire and reward students' curiosity about the world. After daily practice in their social studies classes, 30 students, 
across grades six through eight were eligible to compete in a Preliminary Geography Bee on Friday, January 19th with 
teachers Erin Lhotsky and Molly Moore. From that initial competition, ten finalists advanced to the WLC School Bee 
which was held on Thursday, January 25th. In order to sit on the stage in front of their middle school peers, teachers, and 
parents, these ten finalists had to demonstrate a significant amount of knowledge and understanding of a wide range of 
geographic content; continents, oceans, countries, climates, weather, history, and even more were among the topics 
covered in the questions during practice, the preliminary, and the final itself. At the end of the fourth round of the final 
competition, 7th grader Alex Golding secured third place. After that, a championship round was held to determine the 
school champion. 8th graders Nathan LaChance and Elisabeth Jacob, both geobee alums, faced off in this final round. 
Elisabeth emerged as the victor, and was named the 2018 WLC school champion. On February 1st, Elisabeth will take an 
online qualifying test created by National Geographic to see if she will advance to the State Bee, and perhaps, eventually 
the National Bee in May, held in Washington, DC. Good luck to Elisabeth, and congratulations to all participants for their 
accomplishment! 
 



AD Report: 
Boys Varsity Basketball 
Head Coach: Flip Tremblay 
# of players: 11(4 swing from JV) 
Record: 4-5 
Next Home Game: 2/2 vs. Mt. Royal at 7PM 
 
Boys JV Basketball 
Head Coach: Flip Tremblay 
Assistant Coaches: Sherry LeBlanc and Tom Brennan 
# of players: 8 
Record: 1-3 
Next Home Game: 2/6 vs. Derryfield at 4PM 
 
Girls Varsity Basketball 
Head Coach: Joy Burge 
# of players: 8 
Rec ord: 0-9 
Next Home Game: 2/2 vs. Mt. Royal at 5:30PM 
 
Boys Middle School Basketball 
Head Coach: Leslie Browne 
Assistant Coach: Alex LoVerme 
# of players: 11 
Record: 2-9 
Season completed: did not make play-offs 
 
Girls Middle School Basketball 
Head Coach: Dennis Claire 
# of players: 13 
Record: 6-7 
Next Game: 1/31 @ Auburn at 3:30 - Tri-County Semifinals 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Thursday, February 1 – CPI training, 8:00-3:00, Room 133 

Friday, February 2 – Teacher Workshop, No School 

GV/BV Basketball vs. Mt. Royal, 5:307:00 

Saturday, February 3 –  

Sunday, February 4 – DI Team meeting, 1:30-3:30, cafeteria 

   Men’s League Basketball, 8:00-2:00, gym 

Monday, February 5 –  

Tuesday, February 6 – BJV/GV/BV Basketball vs. Derryfield, 4:00/5:30/7:00 

Wednesday, February 7 –  

Thursday, February 8 – Public Hearing, 6:30, Library 

   Dance Team Dress Rehearsal, 7:00, cafeteria 

Friday, February 9 – Winter Ball, 6:00-9:00, cafeteria  

Saturday, February 10 –  

Sunday, February 11 – DI Team meeting, 1:30-3:30, cafeteria 

   Men’s League Basketball, 8:00-2:00, gym 

Monday, February 12 –  

Tuesday, February 13 – BJV/GV/BV Basketball @ Epping, 4:00/5:30/7:00 

Wednesday, February 14 –  

Thursday, February 15 –  

Friday, February 16 – BV/GV Basketball vs. Nute, 5:30/7:00 

Saturday, February 17 – Andy’s Summer Playhouse, 12:30-3:30, cafeteria and Library 

Sunday, February 18 – DI Team meeting, 1:30-3:30, cafeteria 

Men’s League Basketball, 8:00-2:00, gym 

Monday, February 19 –  



Tuesday, February 20 – Facilities sub-committee, 5:30, Library 

   School Board Meeting, 6:30, Library 

Wednesday, February 21 – Snapshots and Progress reports 

BV Basketball @ Sunapee, 7:00 

Thursday, February 22 – 

Friday, February 23 – Dance Team, dress rehearsal, 7:00, cafeteria 

Saturday, February 24 – 

Sunday, February 25 – DI Team meeting, 1:30-3:30, cafeteria 

   Men’s League Basketball, 8:00-2:00, gym 

Monday, February 26 – NO SCHOOL 

Tuesday, February 27 – NO SCHOOL 

Wednesday, February 28 – NO SCHOOL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

FLORENCE	RIDEOUT	ELEMENTARY	SCHOOL	
18 TREMONT STREET 

WILTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03086 
(603) 654-6714 Main                  (603) 654-3490 Fax  

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________	
          Timothy O’Connell, Principal                                                  Jo Anne Dufour, School Counselor  
  

Florence Rideout Elementary School and Lyndeborough Central School 

Principal’s Report 2/6/2018 

Student reports from our most recent Star 360 Assessment were sent home with parents along with 2nd qtr. learning profiles.  
We continue to use the individual student data to monitor progress and the effectiveness of our Tier 2 interventions.  During 
our professional Day on Friday, February 2nd, time was devoted to analyze results and formulate student action plans with 
RTI coordinator Michelle Locke.   Teams also analyzed grade level results to identify curriculum standards that are a relative 
weaknesses.   School-wide results are included in the curriculum coordinators report.  

The FRES/LCS PTO continues to actively support our students and school.  On Thursday, February 1st a family game 
nigh/Potluck Dinner t was held in the FRES gymnasium.  Educational games were enjoyed by families.  5th grade students 
volunteered as game gurus to teach families these new games and promote sales.  Funds raised from this event will help 
offset the cost of the 5th grade year book for students and families. 

Throughout, January and February classroom teachers have had an opportunity to participate coaching sessions with Reading 
Specialist Tammy Cargill and Stephanie Maze-Tsu consultant form TLA.  During these sessions the coaches observe 
classroom teachers instruct and then provide teachers with feedback.  In addition to these coaching sessions training around 
next stpes with this [program was a primary focus for our professional development day on Friday, February 2nd. The 
implementation of this new program has been successful thus far and staff are becoming more familiar with the format and 
the new instructional practices and strategies. 

February is American Heart Month students in will be participating in Jump Rope for Heart. The Jump Rope for Heart is our 
annual fundraiser for the American Heart Association and it’s fight against heart disease and stroke. This event, coordinated 
by physical education teacher, Fritz Shenk,  has Students jumping rope and collect pledges.   Funds raised are donated to the 
American Heart Association and are used for research, heart education and training programs. Students will be motivated to 
support this with a special visit from the “Hot Shots” jump rope troupe on Friday, February 23rd.  

In the spirit of the Winter Olympics, classes at Florence Rideout will be competing in our “Go for the Gold” bobsled reading 
challenge.  Each class will race or “read” their bobsled down our stairway bobsled track in an attempt to reach the goal of 
5000 minutes by Friday, February 23rd.   

Our second annual Scripps Spelling Bee was held on January 18th at Florence Rideout Elementary School.  We are proud of 
all of our participants and their accomplishments. Anya Zoltko 5th grade student and School champion will represent Florence 
Rideout Elementary School at the state Spelling Bee in Concord on February 24th.  We wish her the best of luck! 

Once again it is time to plan our Kindergarten Registration.  Kindergarten Registration for the upcoming school year will 
begin on Thursday, March 15th with an evening registration event from 5-7 pm at the Lyndeborough Central School.  Staff 
and administration will be on hand to meet students and families and to answer questions.  Registration will continue daily 
from 9-2 pm.  Information for parents about registration requirements and process can be found on the district website. 

           Sincerely,  
           Tim O’Connell 
           Principal 



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap,  veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 

 

 

 

Curriculum Report:  February 6, 2018 
  

Professional Learning 
 

In January, I attended the regional curriculum, instruction, and assessment meetings where 
we discussed technology integration, science instruction aligned to the new standards, and NH 

state testing.  Districts are encouraged to pursue science instruction based on scientific phenomena, 

analyzing data, and drawing conclusions.  I met with teachers at FRES and WLC to review this 
approach back in December and again this month.  Two teachers attended a science standards 

conference and reported that it was very informative as they could dive deeply into the standards. 

I attended the Project Lead the Way New England Conference along with Principal 

O’Connell and a teacher from FRES.  The conference sessions provided us with information on 

science instruction by other schools. 

Curriculum development 
 

We started the science committee at FRES this month and will meet monthly.  We reviewed 
the organization of the Next Generation Science Standards and discussed how the use of the 

Mystery Science program is working in classrooms.  The program provides engaging videos for 
students, each revolving around scientific phenomena.  There are discussion questions and teachers 

are encouraged to delve more deeply into content knowledge and inquiry.  Teachers report that the 

program is working well in the classrooms as students are very interested in the videos, look 
forward to them, and engage in the science. 

Professional Learning Teams at FRES are now being held weekly with the art, music, 
physical education, and technology teachers.  We are focusing on creating the scope and sequence 

documents for each grade level and then creating the detailed units.  We will spend the workshop 

day on February 2 on this work also. 

Assessment 

 
 We scheduled both the interim and final assessments for the NH State Assessment in math, 

reading, and science at FRES.  Some interim assessments will be given in February and others in 

early March.  The interim assessments will allow students and proctors to experience the format 
and provide us with some data as to student performance, readiness for the final assessment, and 

guidance for instruction.  A similar meeting at WLC was cancelled on a snow day and will be 
rescheduled soon. 

 

 The accompanying STAR 360 Assessment Data chart shows the addition of the data from 
the January benchmark testing.  Most grade 1 students took the regular assessment while 23 

students took the Early Literacy Assessment, some of whom also took the regular assessment while 
others were not ready.  The grade level goal is the grade and .5 since January is the fifth month of 

school. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

Julie Heon, Curriculum Coordinator 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District-SAU #63 

District Curriculum Coordinator 

Julie S. Heon, Ed. D. 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 

603-732-9273 

 



                                           STAR 360 Assessment Data                        1/29/2018

MATH READING

Grade test time
# 
students

Scaled 
Score

Grade 
Equivalent Percentile Grade test time

# 
students

Scaled 
Score

Grade 
Equivalent  Percentile

1 Early Literacy
Sep 41 583 NA 1.08
Nov 34 636 NA 1.22
Jan 23 703 NA 1.45

1 Sep NA 1 Sep NA
Nov 12 370 1.8 78 Nov 12 180 2.0 75

*all gr 1 Jan 44* 319 1.4 47 Jan 35 132 1.6 43
change NA

2 Sep 37 404 2.1 45 2 Sep 35 212 2.2 43
Nov 38 462 2.6 63 Nov 35 278 2.7 56
Jan 38 503 3.0 71 Jan 38 333 3.1 64
change 0 41 .4 8 change 3 55 .4 8

3 Sep 37 506 3.0 53 3 Sep 37 317 3.0 35
Nov 39 534 3.3 57 Nov 39 366 3.4 43
Jan 40 563 3.6 60 Jan 40 401 3.7 48
change 1 29 .3 3 change 1 35 .3 7

4 Sep 32 632 4.5 70 4 Sep 32 490 4.4 50
Nov 34 631 4.5 63 Nov 34 506 4.5 49
Jan 34 652 4.8 65 Jan 33 515 4.6 49
change 0 21 .3 2 change -1 9 .1 0

5 Sep 43 699 5.5 69 5 Sep 43 634 5.5 56
Nov 45 704 5.6 66 Nov 45 687 6.0 61
Jan 47 712 5.8 64 Jan 47 699 6.1 60
change 2 8 .2 -2 change 2 12 .1 -1

6 Sep 27 722 6.0 49 6 Sep 29 651 5.7 39
Nov 30 740 6.4 53 Nov 30 709 6.1 44
Jan 31 735 6.3 47 Jan 31 674 5.9 37
change 1 -15 -.1 -6 change 1 35 -.2 -7

7 Nov 40 738 6.3 40 Nov 40 814 6.8 45
Jan 42 748 6.6 41 Jan 43 806 6.8 41
change 2 10 .3 1 change 3 -8 0 -4

8 Sep 41 785 7.7 47 8 Sep 40 915 7.9 45
Nov 39 799 8.3 50 Nov 41 931 8.1 46
Jan 40 805 8.5 50 Jan 39 937 8.2 45
change 1 6 .2 0 change -2 6 .1 -1



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
Menu of Potential Warrant Articles for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

 
Tax Year WA # Type Language 

 

Page 1 of 2 
As of  1/30/2018 

2018  04  School District Operating 
Budget 

To see if the Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative School District will vote 
to raise and appropriate the Budget Committee's recommended 
amount of $12,344,652 for the support of schools, for the payment of 
salaries for the school district officials and agents, and for the payment 
for the statutory obligations of the district.  This article does not include 
appropriations contained in special or individual articles addressed 
separately.  (Majority vote required) 
 
Recommended by the School Board 
Recommended by the Budget Committee  
 
Tax Impact Lyndeborough – ($0.36) 
Tax Impact Wilton – ($0.40)

2018  05  Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between 
The Wilton‐Lyndeborough 
Cooperative School 
Board and the 
Wilton‐Lyndeborough 
Cooperative Support Staff 
Association 

To see if the Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative School District will vote 
to approve the cost items included in the collective bargaining 
agreement reached between the Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative 
School Board and the Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative Support Staff 
Association which calls for the following increases in salaries and 
benefits at the current staffing levels: 
                    Fiscal year                      Estimated Increase 
                      2018‐19                               $ 6,575 
                      2019‐20                               $16,523 
                      2020‐21                               $16,601 
and further to raise and appropriate the sum of $6,575 for the 2018‐
2019 fiscal year, such sum representing the additional costs attributable 
to the increase in salaries and benefits required by the new agreement 
over those that would be paid at current staffing levels.  This article is an 
individual warrant article and does not include appropriations contained 
in special or other individual articles addressed separately.  (Majority 
vote required) 
 
Recommended by the School Board 
Recommended by the Budget Committee 
 
Tax impact Lyndeborough ‐ $0.01 
Tax impact Wilton ‐ $0.01 

2018  06  Special Collective 
Bargaining Unit Warrant 

Shall the Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative School District, if WARRANT 
ARTICLE 5 is defeated, authorize the Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative 
School Board to call one special meeting, at its option, to address 
WARRANT ARTICLE 5 cost items only?  (Majority vote required). 
 
Recommended by the School Board 
 
This warrant article has no tax impact. 



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
Menu of Potential Warrant Articles for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

 
Tax Year WA # Type Language 

 

Page 2 of 2 
As of  1/30/2018 

2018  07  Kindergarten  To see if the Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative School District will vote 
to approve expanding of the current kindergarten program to full day 
and to raise and appropriate the sum of $117,745 for this purpose.  
Such cost to be offset by revenues which may be made available by the 
State of New Hampshire on an annual basis.  This article is an individual 
warrant article and does not include appropriations contained in special 
or other individual articles addressed separately.  (Majority vote 
required) 
 
Recommended by the School Board 
Not Recommended by the Budget Committee 
 
Tax impact Lyndeborough ‐ $0.08   
Tax impact Wilton ‐ $0.09  

2018  08  Use of CRF or ETF and 
Taxation 

To see if the Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative School District will vote 
to raise and appropriate the sum of $60,000 to be added to the Wilton‐
Lyndeborough Cooperative Building/Equipment & Roadway Capital 
Reserve Fund previously established.  This sum is to come from general 
taxation.  This article is a special warrant article and is not included in 
the operating budget warrant article.  (Majority vote required) 
 
Recommended by the School Board 
Recommended by the Budget Committee 
 
Tax impact Lyndeborough ‐ $0.11   
Tax impact Wilton ‐ $0.11  

 

2018 09 Other - Blank To transact any other business that may legally come before this 
meeting. 

 



Cash on Hand June 30, 2017

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking Account 704,647.19$          

Cash on Hand - Food Service Account 14,999.60$            

Total Cash on Hand June 30, 2017 719,646.79$          

Cash on Hand Previous Month

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking Account 517,151.52$        

Cash on Hand - Food Service Account 46,655.61$          

563,807.13$        

Source Description December 2017 YTD 2017-2018

Appropriations Town of Lyndeborough 241,146.67$        1,446,880.02$       

 Appropriations Town of Wilton 583,419.75$        3,500,518.50$       

 Tuition Extended Day Program 2,690.00$            16,700.00$            

 Tuition Preschool Program 1,050.00$            4,050.00$              

 Liability Offset Dental Insurance 1,612.70$            6,956.37$              

Liability Offset COBRA 1,447.35$              

 Federal Funds Medicaid 3,713.63$            55,927.98$            

Federal Funds Title I 16,807.13$          42,726.89$            

Federal Funds Title II 1,104.58$            17,038.92$            

Federal Funds IDEA 22,859.93$          39,008.04$            

Federal Funds IDEA Preschool 688.50$               1,734.00$              

USAC E-Rate 11,354.67$            

State Funds Building Aid 64,000.00$            

State Funds Refund - NHRS 12,582.79$            

Liability Offset School Care Wellness 8,355.00$              

State Funds Equitable Aid 541,921.00$          

State Funds Special Education - Cat Aid 141,067.29$        141,067.29$          

State Funds Food Service Reimbursables 7,810.66$            29,760.06$            

Local Funds Food Service Sales 8,729.05$            40,393.06$            

Town of Wilton C/R Building & Road 16,510.00$          16,510.00$            

State Funds Voc Transportation 2,327.00$            2,327.00$              

Other Jean's Friday 16.00$                 1,053.25$              

Other Lyndeborough History Book Sales 600.00$               775.00$                 

Other Lost Book 51.75$                   

FRES LCS PTO Playground Gift 1,500.00$              

NE Dairy and Food Council Equipment Grant- FUTD 8,900.00$              

State of New Hampshire Court Case Repayment 31.09$                   

Wilton Lions Use of Facility 395.00$                 

Town of Lyndeborough WB Mason Paper 112.10$                 

Employee Refund-Unpaid Leave (RH) 588.88$                 

Houghton Mifflin Refund 852.50$                 

Quill Refund-Duplicate Payment 130.36$                 

American Discovery Refund-Duplicate Payment 12.00$                   

 Total Receipts 1,052,152.89$     6,015,660.87$       

General Fund School Board Orders Paid 355,785.09$        2,201,345.72$       

Special Revenue Funds - Grants School Board Orders Paid 36,842.75$          106,322.29$          

Food Service School Board Orders Paid 10,519.14$          48,968.91$            

Prior Year Payables School Board Orders Paid 176,448.57$          

Payroll School Board Orders Paid 842,404.66$        3,760,303.79$       

Transfer to Capital Reserve Fund School Board Orders Paid 71,510.00$            

Total Disbursements 1,245,551.64$     6,293,389.28$       

Current Activity (193,398.75)$       (277,728.41)$         

Month End Cash on Hand Total 370,408.38$        441,918.38$          

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking 315,023.72$        

Cash on Hand - Food Service 55,384.66$          

Month End Cash on Hand Total 370,408.38$        

To the WLC Coop School Board:

The above is a correct statement of the transactions of the Treasurer to date.

Cindy Marzella

Wilton-Lyndeborough Coop School District Treasurer

Treasurer's Monthly Report

Wilton-Lyndeborough Coop S.D.

Ending December 31, 2017



 

 

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING AND BUDGET COMMITTEE JOINT SESSION 2 

Tuesday, January 23, 2018 3 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 4 

     6:30 p.m. 5 
 6 

Present: Harry Dailey, Geoff Brock, Matt Ballou, Miriam Lemire, Mark Legere, Joyce Fisk, Carol 7 

LeBlanc, Alex LoVerme and Charlie Post (arrived after budget committee mtg.) 8 

 9 

Superintendent Bryan Lane, Business Administrator Lise Tucker, Director of Student Support Services 10 

Betty Moore, Principal, Tim O’Connell, Director of Technology Kevin Verratti, and Clerk Kristina Fowler 11 

 12 

I. CALL TO ORDER  13 
Chairman Dailey called the meeting to order at 6:32pm. 14 

 15 

II. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 16 
There were no adjustments to the agenda. 17 

 18 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 19 
WLC student, Shane Partridge asked for permission to voice record himself, there was no objection. He 20 

spoke regarding previous public comment when a student voiced opinion of the state of the honors classes 21 

at WLC concerning the amount of rigor. As far as increasing intensity and rigor, he believes it’s unfair to 22 

implement across the board.  He spoke of many students (mostly upper classman) starting to have work 23 

obligations of up to 20-21 hours a week and many students playing sports between 1-3 sports a year which 24 

can be as many hours as spent working and some doing both.  He reported many classes having a range of 25 

intelligence and capability on a subject. Many are already being challenged more than they need to be and 26 

if there are those who need to be challenged more the way to go about it he feels, is to go about it 27 

individually; is there is a way to individualize a class to give those students more or give on line classes or 28 

extra credit.  He states many students are stressed with classes and there are other ways to make sure the 29 

others are being challenged. Chairman Dailey thanked him and noted the challenge is how do we offer 30 

everything; being a small district there are advantages and disadvantages and hopes to get student feedback 31 

continually.  Superintendent Lane is looking at this and ways to individualize.   32 

 33 

IV. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 34 

a. Reports 35 

i. Superintendent’s Report 36 
Superintendent Lane reported spending most of his time on the budget which will soon be completed. 37 

Information that has been has been provided to the budget committee is documented in his report.  38 

Previously he was asked to obtain information regarding fee for service for kindergarten. In speaking with 39 

Caitlin Davis at the DOE he learned other districts are also inquiring about this. The inquiry has been 40 

turned over to the Attorney General’s Office for clarification and a technical advisory will be sent out. He 41 

read the related RSA 198:38 to the group.  Draft warrant articles have been sent to the DRA for review. 42 

The transportation bid opening was completed and will be discussed later this evening. There is a new 43 

piece of legislation out, HB 1263 relative to the home schooling concept.  The proposal is to bring the 44 

standard of home schooling back to what it was in 2012. He gave a brief overview, currently the only 45 

requirement is to send a letter of intent to home school. In 2012 there was a requirement that parents submit 46 

a plan annually, take a smarter balanced type test and be in the 40th percentile. If not in the 40th percentile 47 

they needed a plan on how to improve and after a year if still below the requirement they would then enroll 48 

the student in class because the plan was not functional. He is in favor of home school as long as we are 49 

doing good things for kids. A public hearing is scheduled January 25 in Concord; he is not planning on 50 



 

 

attending. If the standard changes we would follow the standard.  He has experience with the old format 51 

and believes it to be effective. 52 

ii. Director of Student Support Services Report 53 
Ms. Moore provided a status update on the number of referrals being processed through special education 54 

(10). Crisis Prevention Intervention training is scheduled for February 1st and 2nd.   She provided the 55 

approval report from the DOE regarding the MS RISE program.  She confirmed we are approved for 56 

current programs and in addition, approved for the MS program.  57 

iii. Director of Technology’s Report 58 
Mr. Verratti reported the first mapping project has been completed. Equipment was moved around and   59 

three network switches were identified as being underutilized and will be kept as spares. Two servers 8-9 60 

years old were identified as not serving any function and have been turned off and will be recycled.  61 

Security flaws were identified (by security professionals) with all Intel chips known as Spectre and 62 

Meltdown. Patches for these flaws come out slowly and he doesn’t see a big threat but it should be watched 63 

anyway so it doesn’t cause problems in the future. There are old systems (7-8 years and not high end) that 64 

need to be looked at as we may need to replace or pull them out completely. Chrombooks have the same 65 

issue as they have Intel. There has been intermittent issues with poor quality and lag time of phone calls, 66 

example, you may wait three seconds before you hear someone.  He is working with the vendor and it is 67 

being monitored. 68 

 69 

b. Letters/Information 70 

i. Honors Classes 71 
Superintendent Lane explained in response to a student concern raised at the last board meeting, he put out 72 

a request to teachers and received information back. (What do you do to separate rigor.)  Some teachers are 73 

creating strong environments for students and any that need help have been directed to Dr. Heon to provide 74 

ways to go about this. One thing all were in agreement on is the difference in honors is not the work load. It 75 

is how to present the information and find ways to analyze what you are doing. He reviewed what some 76 

teachers are doing such as faster pace or using documents such as the Declaration of Independence with 77 

data based questions. Feedback included was there was not always a level of effort in some students who 78 

are involved in their classes. A level of expectation will be determined that will make sense by way of a 79 

formula. He said it is about different work to create a different product because that is the expectation when 80 

they leave us.  Although he does not have all the answers yet, he is working with staff as well to be sure 81 

their issues are addressed.  A concern was raised that some students are in honors classes because parents 82 

insist on this and it slows down the progress of the class. Superintendent Lane confirmed criteria to get into 83 

an honors class will be part of this. If you sign up for a class we do not recommend you for, it may contain 84 

some type of sign off by the parents that they understand we would not change the rigor of the class to 85 

change its original intent and in a small school a student may be put in another class and you may not get 86 

all the classes you want; a process will need to be put in place. 87 

 88 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 89 

a. Treasurer’s Report-November 2017 90 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Ballou and SECONDED by Mr. Legere to approve the consent agenda as 91 

presented. 92 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 93 

 94 

VI. 7:00PM JOINT BOARD & BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION 95 

a. FY 2018-2019 Final draft Preparation for Public Hearing 96 

Present: Leslie Browne, Jim Kofalt, Lisa Post, Edwina Hastings, Bill Ryan, Christine Tiedemann, and Pam 97 

Altner via telephone. 98 

 99 

The budget committee was already in session as they met prior at 6:30pm. They have prepared a 100 

presentation regarding the budget; presented by Chairman Browne. A copy of the slides shown can be 101 

found with these minutes. 102 



 

 

 103 

She reported the committee met last week and reviewed the line item budget, looked at items that were 104 

increased over last year, compared expenditures from FY17, and reviewed prior presentations.  We looked 105 

at areas that were significant and looked for justification in them and if we didn’t find it we made cuts. The 106 

committee has questions on the areas that were unclear to them, want additional information on or what 107 

makes up those numbers. Chairman Browne reviewed the proposed budget with reductions and reasons 108 

which included: 109 

Proposed budget reductions for SAU: 110 

 $3,000-professional development, supplies, postage (increase over FY 2017) 111 

 $10,000-business office (request justification-increase over FY 2017) 112 

 Total SAU reduction $13,000 113 

Superintendent Lane answered a question regarding the curriculum coordinator and why this was separated 114 

($4,100), he reported we didn’t have a budget prior to this year, it was created. It is for professional 115 

development for conferences, to bring back staff development instead of bringing in outside vendors, travel 116 

cost, dues and memberships for NHSAA and Curriculum Development Association.  The offset of the 117 

expense for membership is reduced cost for staff development. Cost of membership is based on enrollment 118 

and is an annual fee.  He expects the numbers to be consistent and better determined down the road. 119 

 120 

 Additional justification was asked regarding the increase in the business office. Superintendent Lane 121 

explained two full time positions will be combined into one position. Five thousand six hundred dollars 122 

($5,600) is allocated for substitute services if needed (temp service) should the one person be out as 123 

currently backup is available. The logistics of this were briefly discussed.  It was suggested to look into a 124 

payroll service or cross train in the office. Superintendent Lane commented if the board wanted to 125 

designate that money into a holding fund and used for only its purpose and would be return to the towns if 126 

not used he is agreeable to this.   127 

 128 

Mr. Kofalt suggested it would be helpful to have some sort of mapping to the running budget. 129 

 130 

Proposed budget reductions for technology: 131 

 $8,000-software (request explanation-increase over FY17) 132 

 $10,000-replacement equipment (request justification-increase over FY 2017) 133 

 Total technology reduction $18,000 134 

Ms. Tucker reported one major expense ($8,400) is SchoolDude which includes maintenance and IT work 135 

orders and CIP licensing (a forecasting module to be used with the CIP) and includes help from the vendor 136 

to “put it all together” incorporating data from the facilities study and will be mostly used by Ms. Tucker. 137 

Costs about $6,300 vs, $1,700 for this piece if we did the work ourselves (mostly data entry). It was noted 138 

that the quote seems high and if approved other vendors should be looked at.  The annual cost is believed 139 

to be about $1,500 in following years. 140 

 141 

Mr. Verratti confirmed replacement equipment does not include 1:1 computing but replacing other systems 142 

that are 5-7 years old such as laptops for staff and touchscreen devises for grades 1-2.  He explained the 143 

cost for camera replacements as two different types of cameras, one for interior and one for exterior. 144 

Exterior camera has 360 views including straight down and needs to be heated as it is outside.  In the past 145 

replacements were on the lower end and we don’t get as much life out of them.   146 

 147 

Proposed budget reductions for FRES: 148 

 $5,000-replacement equipment, furniture (specifically rugs, desks, chairs and shelving units and snow 149 

blower-request clarification-increase over FY17) 150 

 $10,000-utilities, contracted services, postage (specifically water, sewage, fuel snowplowing, 151 

electricity and building maintenance-increase over FY17) 152 

 $13,000-math coach (need justification, didn’t see value at this time-decrease from FY17 and FY18) 153 



 

 

 $20,000-curriculum (request explanation-increase over FY17 and FY18) 154 

 Total FRES reduction $48,000 155 

Principal O’Connell explained a large amount of instruction takes place on the rugs and although cleaned 156 

each summer, about two or three need replacing. Furniture is on an 8 year replacement cycle, although the 157 

building is new, 8 classrooms contain repurposed furniture. Shelving units are part of Reader’s Workshop, 158 

each classroom contains reading libraries and some classrooms are not adequate to have these robust 159 

libraries. Mr. Erb confirmed the snow blower has needed to be replaced for years although it is operable, 160 

they continue to “Band-Aid it”. It was noted allocation of $2,900 seems high for this. Ms. Tucker 161 

confirmed building maintenance/repairs includes preventative repairs, inspections and contracted services 162 

such as plumbing, heating and fire protection.  She confirmed fuel was based on current CIP at the time 163 

and “you take an average” but it does depend on the weather.  164 

 165 

Regarding the math coach, the budget committee wanted to see with the addition this year of the RTI and 166 

curriculum coordinator if trending would improve (the role of the math coach is to train staff) as not 167 

enough time has been given to see results with the addition of these two roles.  Superintendent Lane, 168 

Principal O’Connell and Dr. Heon, Curriculum Coordinator all support a math coach. There was a long 169 

discussion on this subject which included sharing of opinions, the agreed upon need to increase student 170 

achievement, the background of elementary teachers training is not focused in math, it is the same model as 171 

the Reader’s Workshop and significant growth is being made in this area, gaps in math for elementary 172 

students have a waterfall effect, not giving what we currently have a chance, and waiting a year to see what 173 

progress has been made. 174 

 175 

Superintendent Lane spoke regarding the increase in the curriculum line. Reader’s Workshop was approved 176 

in current budget ($25,000) and the goal is to maintain this level of improvement and to add Writer’s 177 

Workshop ($23,000). It’s a one year expense and after that, curriculum pieces would be looked at to see if 178 

we need to change the math piece. Also included in the curriculum line is replacement for social studies 179 

text books (approximately $4,700) and Handwriting without Tears. 180 

It was noted transportation increased due to new contracts (includes latest regular education bid) and cost 181 

fluctuates as it includes special education transportation. 182 

 183 

Proposed budget reductions for LCS: 184 

 $4,000-utilities, contracted services, repair, postage (increase over FY17-to bring it more in line with 185 

previous years) 186 

 $2,200-professional development (request explanation-increase over FY17) 187 

 $6,000-curriclum (request explanation-increase over FY17) 188 

 Total LCS reduction $12,200 189 

Superintendent Lane explained professional development includes the LCS portion of the math coach 190 

($14,400 FRES/$3,600 LCS=$18,000 total) this line also includes a portion for Reader’s Workshop and 191 

Writer’s Workshop.  Principal O’Connell added Handwriting without Tears is included (new multi-192 

researched based program allows for progress and make strides faster) currently 3rd grade is the last grade 193 

we teach handwriting but wish to extend up to 4th grade.  It was noted there is an increase in 194 

transportation. 195 

 196 

Proposed budget reductions for MS: 197 

 $7,500-replacement equipment, furniture (request explanation-increase over FY17) 198 

 $3,000-new equipment furniture (request explanation-increase over FY 2017) 199 

 $12,000-travel, dues and fees (increased over FY17 ) 200 

 Total MS reduction $22,500 201 

Superintendent Lane explained replacement equipment includes cost for bleachers (split .45MS /.55 HS) 202 

and cafeteria tables (.45/.55, 10 tables), and new equipment includes Ecolab cleaning caddy (cost split) for 203 

custodians to disinfect the bathrooms which “basically power washes the bathrooms”. Superintendent 204 



 

 

Lane explained travel/dues and fees include district contribution for fees to 6th grade camp for students 205 

who struggle with payment. It also includes athletics transportation which is not in the transportation line. 206 

The main purpose of the district van is transporting to/from career and tech classes in Milford and saves 207 

the district funds. It is currently transporting one sped student.  It is used for other things when it does not 208 

interfere with its main purpose often for athletics.  He anticipates sharing data on the van use in April. It 209 

was pointed out there is a decrease in transportation. 210 

 211 

Proposed budget reductions for HS: 212 

 $7,500-replacement equipment, furniture (request explanation-increase over FY17) 213 

 $5,000-new equipment (request explanation- increase over FY17) 214 

 $9,000-curriculum (request explanation-increase over FY17) 215 

 Total HS reduction $21,500 216 

Superintendent Lane explained equipment and furniture includes $5,000 for cafeteria tables (.55 of 10 217 

tables), 5 were replaced last year.  Also included is replacement furniture for classrooms and bleachers (.55 218 

split) for outdoors.  He explained regarding curriculum there is a STEM initiative (science, technology, 219 

engineering, and math) with costs associated in line1100-650-03 for a combination of computer and 220 

technology applications. It was noted a small increase in transportation. 221 

 222 

Proposed budget reductions for payroll and benefits: 223 

 reduction of 5th grade teacher ($71,045) 224 

 added back 2 MS teachers (+$90,000-not supporting MS proposed model change) 225 

 Grand Total of proposed budget committee cuts $116,245.  226 

Chairman Browne concluded with noting appreciation for the cuts made by Superintendent Lane and the 227 

need to invest in curriculum which they fully support but they cannot continue to bear a growing budget 228 

and came up with areas for reduction as presented. Chairman Dailey acknowledged appreciation for the 229 

amount of time and effort that they put into the process, getting better and better each year. Chairman 230 

Browne confirmed it is not necessarily their final number, it is a proposal and the budget committee would 231 

like to take into consideration (and discuss) the information they received this evening to determine if they 232 

want to make any adjustments.  Discussion had included the process and this being the first time the school 233 

board has seen it.  Further discussion was had when the budget committee would meet to discuss, either 234 

recess and meet now or a different day and should the next school board meeting include another joint 235 

session.  Consensus is to include a joint session at the next school board meeting on February 6 and 236 

Superintendent Lane noted he hopes an exchange of information could happen prior to that with the 237 

understanding all emails sent are a matter of public record. The budget committee is meeting on January 30 238 

and will have a consensus on their proposal. Chairman Browne confirmed the budget committee does not 239 

support full day kindergarten in any form, in the budget or as a warrant article at this time. 240 

 241 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENTS 242 
Parent, Brianne Lavalle, Lyndeborough spoke in regard to professional development in math noting it is 243 

not just something we might need; it’s something we have to have. She spoke of seeing multiple students 244 

struggle with math and that the math today is very different; it being a multistep process and so involved. 245 

She noted it’s not just the teachers who need the professional development but the paraeducators also 246 

stating even if they understand it they may not know how to communicate it effectively and it being an area 247 

the students can really benefit from.  248 

 249 

Parent, John Vanderhoof, Lyndeborough asked for clarification on the math coach. Superintendent Lane 250 

responded it is professional development similar to what was done around the reading program happening 251 

at the end of the school year, during summer and additional days prior to the beginning of school for grades 252 

K-5.  The consultant (math coach) would come in observe teachers in the same format during the year as 253 

the Reader’s Workshop is done now.  The amount of hours contracted and assumed similar to Reader’s 254 

Workshop. Teachers observe the consultant conducting lessons and use those strategies in the classroom 255 



 

 

and obtain feedback and support.  Principal O’Connell confirmed a search would need to be done to find 256 

someone to meet the needs and the budget. He states the budget for this is fair and would get us what we 257 

need.  Superintendent Lane added our curriculum coordinator is not a math specialist and we are looking 258 

for a person who has that level of focus, background knowledge.  Responding to a question from Ms. Post, 259 

he confirmed the need for a curriculum coordinator depended on the long term needs of the district and 260 

plan.  Discussion was had regarding if math has changed or not and agreed fundamentally it has not 261 

however how you get there has.  Mr. Kofalt although wants to improve the situation, has concerns 262 

investing in something that is an education trend and down the road we would want to go back to basics.  263 

Superintendent Lane reviewed STAR 360 (assessment tool) has a math portion and what we are/can learn 264 

from using it with a level of consistency.  He reviewed the importance understanding word problems and 265 

the need to know what to do first and in which order.  He states in a larger school district he would hire a 266 

full time person however we are not and do not have the same level of need but do have to find a way to 267 

make a positive impact. This can be done for a small amount of money in a short time. Answering a 268 

question from Ms. Post, he discussed RTI (response to instruction) and the different tiers that exist (tier 1, 269 

2, 3). He confirmed we need the RTI position currently and would continue to evaluate the data for future 270 

needs.   271 

 272 

Ms. Post voiced preference for the budget committee to recess and meet. She spoke of being pretty 273 

satisfied with the proposed budget committee’s number and it being close to a final and suggests to the 274 

school board they can still get what they want by moving some things around but need to think about 275 

where they want to cut.   The situation was further discussed with differing opinions voiced including there 276 

being no wiggle room left in the budget (to negotiate) as all of the items were cut. Mr. Post questioned if 277 

the budget is so locked down it can’t be reduced by 1%, and if that 1% was even talked about.  Chairman 278 

Dailey commented there are statutory and legal requirements (added $1,000,000 in debt service), there 279 

comes a point when we tweak and tweak; we deferred maintenance before and ended up with $8,000,000 in 280 

repairs because so much maintenance was deferred.       281 

 282 

Ms. Ashley Saari, reporter (Ledger) questioned if the budget committee’s stance on kindergarten was 283 

purely financial. Chairman Browne responded a little of both, we don’t feel the taxpayers can carry that 284 

burden right now and do not see evidence of the benefit.   Ms. Post added generally the budget committee 285 

does not recommend things that are not mandated. Mr. Kofalt added the studies seem to be split and 286 

interpreted the data as a “break even” or negligible regarding benefit of full day.  Ms. LeBlanc commented 287 

that most people who are financially able choose full day kindergarten for their children and are benefiting 288 

from it.  Ms. Post noted if you are going to do it she would like to see it as a warrant article.  Chairman 289 

Dailey added the school board preliminarily voted to remove it as a warrant article. 290 

 291 

A MOTION was made by Ms. Tiedemann and SECONDED by Mr. Kofalt to recess the budget committee 292 

session at 9:20pm. 293 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 294 

 295 

VIII. ACTION ITEMS 296 

a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 297 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Ballou and SECONDED by Ms. Fisk to approve the minutes of January 12, 298 

2018 as amended. 299 

Voting: five aye; two abstentions from Mr. Brock and Mr. LoVerme, motion carried. 300 

 301 

b. Transportation Bid 302 
Ms. Tucker reported a bid was sent out for regular education transportation; a rebid as board requested. 303 

One quote was received from Steve’s School Bus Service, she reviewed the quote which included regular 304 

to/from $242,200 180 days, 5 buses (11.61% increase), field trips minimum charge, $137 (11.61% 305 

decrease), athletic trips minimum charge $137 (14.4% decrease) with a 2% increase in 2019-20 and 2020-306 

21.  She recommends awarding the bid to Steve’s School Bus Service.  Discussion was had regarding the 307 



 

 

current bid vs. the previous bid/s and differences, original bid from Steve’s School Bus Service was higher 308 

than current bid but new bid slightly below Butler’s Bus Service and Steve’s previous bid asked for 1% 309 

annual increase and now asking for 2% annual increase.  Discussions continued whether to reissue the RFP 310 

(request for proposal) or not, would results be different, the process and if negotiation on current bid should 311 

be considered, if non-public session was needed or not.  Mr. Ballou noted it would be helpful, referencing 312 

an email the board received on this topic, when we get correspondence it becomes part of the minutes. Mr. 313 

Ballou recommends rejecting the bid due to the process even though the results may be the same.  The 314 

contract is for three years.  315 

 316 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Brock and SECONDED by Mr. Post to accept the bid from Steve’s School 317 

Bus Service as presented. 318 

Voting: seven aye; one nay from Mr. Ballou, motion carried. 319 

 320 

IX. COMMITTEE REPORTS 321 

i. Budget Liaison 322 
Mr. Post reported the committee gave the board very specific recommendations and wonders (it’s his 323 

opinion) if it was a trap, they did the diligent work and he believes the school board should act. They took a 324 

vote and are not in support of kindergarten in any fashion. They expressed concerns if their budget was 325 

voted in the school board would have kindergarten anyway. Chairman Dailey responded with what we are 326 

doing now, that amount would have to be added into the budget via a motion at district meeting for the 327 

specific amount and he doesn’t feel it would be consistent with the will of the people if it was voted down 328 

and done anyway.  Mr. Ballou noted there was no discussion of a trap and Mr. Post responded it was his 329 

opinion because everything was pulled apart and got very involved in curriculum.  This started the board 330 

budget discussion. 331 

 332 

 BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION 333 
Discussion was had and various opinions shared regarding the budget presentation, process and past 334 

history.  Mr. Post voiced his concern that the school board did not review the budget line by line as the 335 

budget committee did.  Appreciation was voiced for the work the budget committee did.  Discussion 336 

continued including when is the time to “fix things” and the MS model was briefly reviewed; it was 337 

questioned why something of this significance was not discussed sooner and that they didn’t hear much 338 

about the benefits of the proposed change other than monetary.  Superintendent Lane explained in this 339 

scenario the personnel piece comes toward the end of the budget.  He believes there are educational 340 

benefits to this and suggests it be reviewed by the Strategic Planning Committee, allow for community 341 

input and have a study completed by September/October when the next budget sessions starts. Discussions 342 

continued regarding the proposed changes to the MS model and not wanting to discourage this type of out 343 

of the box thinking.   They discussed proposed cuts from the budget committee and finding common 344 

ground and Mr. Post suggests common ground with no tax increase. Chairman Dailey questions if money 345 

could be taken out of the special education cap reserve to reduce the budget. Superintendent Lane 346 

responded he did not believe it could be part of the budget scenario.  Mr. Post noted the committee didn’t 347 

want to touch the special education budget or technology budget however in the end they did reduce 348 

technology. Superintendent Lane confirmed there were $35,000 cuts in curriculum and $18,200 in 349 

professional development.  350 

 351 

Full day kindergarten was discussed and various scenarios and  opinions shared including adding it back as 352 

a warrant article, motion from the floor, who can motion, it not being as transparent if it is not in the budget 353 

and  marketing it. The consensus was they do support full day kindergarten.   354 

 355 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Ballou and SECONDED by Mr. Brock to add a warrant article to extend 356 

kindergarten to full day. 357 

Voting: six aye; two nay from Mr. Post and Ms. Lemire, motion carried. 358 

 359 



 

 

Ms. Lemire noted that she fully supports kindergarten but feels it is more hidden to have it as a warrant 360 

article as it’s an annual cost that is not in the budget. She understands it is clear as a warrant article but if 361 

it’s educationally appropriate it is more transparent to put it in the budget as part of our curriculum and not 362 

excluding it. 363 

 364 

Superintendent Lane clarified since full day kindergarten will be a warrant article it can be marketed, at 365 

that point at district meeting a citizen could still motion (with dollar figure) to put it in the budget and the 366 

body makes the decision. 367 

 368 

X. RESIGNATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / LEAVES 369 
 There were none to report 370 

 371 

XI. BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION 372 
See above. 373 

 374 

XII. PUBLIC COMMENTS 375 
Mr. John Vanderhoof, parent (Lyndeborough) questioned if the DOE responds to say you can charge fees 376 

for kindergarten and extend to full day is that going to be brought back as a topic.  Superintendent Lane 377 

responded the information will be brought back to the board.  Mr. Brock added he believes we need a 378 

vehicle to have the public decide how they want to do it as it is a different program if we are charging 379 

people. 380 

 381 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 382 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Brock and SECONDED by Ms. Fisk to adjourn the Board meeting at 383 

10:26pm. 384 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 385 

 386 

Respectfully submitted, 387 

Kristina Fowler 388 

 389 






















































































































	WLC School Board Agenda 2.6.18
	Gettysburg Presentation
	Washington DC
	Washington DC Proposal
	Washington DC Student Application 

	Supt report Feb 6 2018
	Business Office Report - 020618
	WLC Principal Report Feb 2018
	principal 2.6
	principal 2.6 part 2

	Elementary Report 2-6-18
	Curriculum Coord. Report Feb 2018
	Curriculum Report Feb.2018
	STAR data chart 1.29.2018

	Warrant Articles TO BOARD 2018-19 5th updated
	Treasurer Report 123117 revd
	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 1.23.182
	2017 WLCSD - GOV LTR final
	2017 WLCSD - REPORT final.pdf



